## **Minutes**



### **MAJOR** Applications Planning Committee

## 11 May 2016

## Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), Ian Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Peter Curling, Janet Duncan (Labour Lead), Henry Higgins, John Morgan, Brian Stead, David Yarrow and John Oswell
	LBH Officers Present: Nicole Cameron (Legal) James Rodger (Head of Planning, Green Spaces and Culture), Johanna Hart (Planning), Syed Shah (Highways)
67.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Jazz Dhillon, with Councillor John Oswell substituting.
68.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	Councillor Curling was a Governor of Harefield Academy and declared this as a non-pecuniary interest with reference to item 6 and left the room for that item.
	Councillor Higgins declared an interest in item 6 and left the room for that item.
69.	TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING ON 12 APRIL 2016 (Agenda Item 3)
	The minutes of the meeting held on 12 April 2016 were agreed.
70.	MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 4)
	None.
71.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)
	It was confirmed that all agenda items were Part I and would be heard in public.
72.	ASH GROVE OPEN SPACE, ASH GROVE, HAREFIELD - 71704/APP/2016/1038 (Agenda Item 6)
	•

Ash Grove Open Space, Ash Grove, Harefield - 71704/APP/2016/1038 (Agenda Item 6)

The erection of a new single storey youth centre with a double height sports hall, landscaping, replacement playground, modified vehicular crossover, car parking, external lighting, fencing, demolition, replacement of four garages and ancillary works.

Officers introduced the report, and, noting the addendum, provided an overview of the application. The application sought full planning permission for the erection of a single-storey Young People's Centre with double height sports hall, car parking, landscaping, and associated development at Ash Grove Open Space in Harefield. The scheme also sought to demolish and rebuild four garages close to the entrance of the site.

The Young People's Centre was to provide holiday and after school sessional activities for young people from the local area aged between 8 and 19. The applicant had advised that the young population of Harefield had steadily increased over recent years such that there were now approximately 1,500 persons within this age group living in the village. The proposed new centre would enable a greater and wider range of services to be offered from a purpose built facility.

It was suggested that the Young People's Centre would provide:

- Safety and security for young people
- Daytime, afternoon and evening clubs
- Purpose built adaptable space for a range of learning programmes / workshops
- Equipment such as pool and table tennis tables
- Storage to accommodate resources and equipment
- Confidential space to offer additional support to those who need it
- A place for young people to take ownership and a positive role within the community.

It was noted that there were already eight Young People's Centres within the Borough. The development was considered by Officers to comply with current local and national planning policies, the London Plan and approval was recommended.

The Lead Petitioner and their Representative made the following points:

- The people of Harefield should have been asked where they wanted the Youth Centre to be built.
- Ash Grove was densely populated and was surrounded by housing.
- Locals used the area and it was important especially for children.
- Harefield already had an underused youth centre and it was not clear why another one is needed.
- Loss of the park, which was used daily by residents as a public green area meant a lot to residents as an integral part of their life quality.
- The proposal was contrary to the Government's recently publicised desire to conserve green open spaces.
- Local children use the playground everyday there will no longer be anything for smaller children to play on.
- The remaining grass was too small so residents would need to exercise their

dogs elsewhere. This was unfair to the elderly and mobility impaired.

- There would be an increase in traffic and congestion.
- Insufficient parking and drop-off/pick-up provision for parents and visitors -Parking in the area is already at saturation point and this would add to congestion on the narrow roads.
- There was limited access for vehicular traffic.
- The use of the south entrance for vehicular traffic would be a disaster waiting to happen. Access would be impeded for fire engines and ambulances due to high levels of on-street parking, especially around the bends and in the evenings. This is already a problem and damage was caused to a resident's car by a fire engine attending an incident at New Year.
- The parking survey did not show a true representation of the parking situation as it was not carried out when everyone was home from work.
- Residents often sit on the bench and enjoy the green surroundings.
- Large lorries and delivery trucks would have difficulty manoeuvring around parked cars and were likely to cause damage to parked vehicles during construction.
- Noise would echo off the surrounding houses.
- An increase in pedestrian and vehicular traffic, noise and litter pollution would be detrimental to the quality of life of all residents.
- There might be an increase in crime and antisocial behaviour including drugs, alcohol, bad behaviour, violence, vandalism and burglaries.
- There was no police station in the village and policing would be too retroactive.
- Residents had a right to a private and family life.
- The building was too big and looked hideous and out of character for the area.

Councillors expressed concerns that the Council were proposing to build recreational facilities on green space and questioned whether another location could be used. There was also concern that excessive traffic would be generated. There were reservations and concerns about the about the loss of community space. Councillors noted that a Youth Centre would benefit the community but felt that the proposed building was being shoe horned into the development leaving no amenity.

It was noted that the windows were non-opening and this could be a free risk.

Some Councillors had been on a site visit and noted that there would be space for the young people to park their bicycles. It was felt by some Councillors that there was a lot of 'hype' around the proposed building and that it would benefit the local area.

Officers stated that the proposed building would not attract a high volume of traffic according to the traffic surveys conducted. The Highways Officer was questioned about emergency vehicle access and stated that requirements were met. Councillors asked for reassurance that there was not a safety issue. Some Councillors noted that not all young people will be walking to the site and would be dropped by car, particularly disabled children and therefore more parking was needed. It was questioned whether there would be drainage issues, Officers responded that the proposed building was not on a flood plain. Councillors also questioned the provision for the waste management of the proposed building site. It was concluded that a balance had to be struck between youth provision and understanding the needs of residents.

The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being put to vote there were 4 in favour of approval and 3 against approval.

RESOLVED That: APPROVED as per the officer recommendation and subject to the following additional conditions:

1. Prior to commencement of development a Waste Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall detail how refuse from the site will be stored and collected. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

#### REASON

To ensure that adequate provision is made for the disposal, storage and collection of litter and waste, in the interests of maintaining a satisfactory standard of amenity in the locality, in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015).

2. Prior to commencement of development full details of the proposed vehicular access gates to the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The gates shall be fitted with fire brigade locks to ensure out of hours access can be obtained by emergency vehicles. The gates shall thereafter be constructed, retained and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

#### **REASON**

To safeguard the visual amenities of the surrounding area, to ensure security of the site and to ensure emergency vehicles are able to access the site at all times and to ensure highway and pedestrian safety, in accordance with policies BE13, AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policies 7.1 and 7.3 of the London Plan (2015).

3. Notwithstanding the approved plans, prior to the commencement of development a scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall set out measures which shall be put in place to ensure fire engine access can be gained to the site at all times or alternatively measures to demonstrate how the development shall comply with relevant fire regulation requirements. The approved measures shall be implemented prior to occupation of the development.

#### **REASON**

To ensure emergency vehicles are able to access the site at all times and to ensure highway and pedestrian safety, in accordance with policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

# 73. KINGSWAY HOUSE, HORTON ROAD, YIEWSLEY - 70438/APP/2015/4424 (Agenda Item 7) Officers introduced the report, and, noting the addendum, provided an overview of the application. The application was for the erection of a part 4, part 5 storey block of 34 new residential units, with associated car & cycle parking and amenity space, involving the demolition of the existing commercial buildings. Councillors noted that very little information had been provided and they needed more detail and information to ensure that they met Council standards and to approve the plan. It was proposed and seconded, and upon being put to a vote was unanimously agreed to defer the item RESOLVED That: the item be deferred. The committee has requested that the applicant be asked to provide further information on the following: 1. Amenity space provision to demonstrate compliance with minimum standards 2. Vehicle tracking, particularly for refuse vehicles Further clarification is also required on: 3. Clarify overlooking distances to Building B and Bignell House 4. Clarify whether contributions towards health provision should be sought **ADDENDUM**

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Kiran Grover on 01895 250693. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.14 pm.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

